
10/7/97 Public Participation 
1 

SPECIAL MEETING 
BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN 

(PUBLIC PARTICIPATION) 
 
 
October 7, 1997                                                                                                             7:00 PM 
 

 

Mayor Wieczorek called the meeting to order. 

 

Mayor Wieczorek called for the Pledge of Allegiance, this function being led by Alderman 

Domaingue. 

 

A moment of silent prayer was held. 

 

The Clerk called the roll.  There were ten Aldermen present. 

Present: Aldermen Wihby, Elise, Sysyn, Clancy, Shea, Domaingue, Pariseau, 
  Cashin, Robert, Hirschmann 
 
Absent: Aldermen Reiniger and Soucy 
 

 

Mayor Wieczorek advised that the purpose of the special meeting was to give residents of 

Manchester the opportunity to address the Board on items of concern affecting the community; 

that each person would be given only one opportunity to speak; that any comments shall be 

limited to two minutes to allow all participants the opportunity to speak and any comments must 

be directed for the Chair. 

 

Mayor Wieczorek requested that any resident wishing to speak come forward to the nearest 

microphone, clearly state their name and address when recognized, and give their comments. 

 

Donald Solesky, 215 Thornton Street, Manchester, NH, stated: 

My main concern is with a City ordinance which concerns working on people’s cars in 

residential areas.  I had a neighbor complain that I like to work on my own car, in my own 

driveway, and he called the City Building Inspector.  They came down and told me under the 

City ordinance no one is allowed to work on their car on their own property and I don’t think 

that’s right.  Commercial purposes, I can understand, financial gain I can understand, but not to 

allow a private citizen to work on his own car on his own property, I do not think is correct and 

that is my only concern in this City. 

 
Alderman Wihby asked was the car registered. 
 
Mr. Solesky replied, yes it was. 
 
Alderman Wihby stated it was and you still couldn’t work on it. 
 

Mr. Solesky stated they said you cannot do any work, whatsoever on your own vehicle or any 

vehicle in residential areas. 



10/7/97 Public Participation 
2 

 
Alderman Wihby asked what were you doing. 
 
Mr. Solesky replied, I was doing a tune up on my car. 
 
Alderman Wihby stated it was up on blocks. 
 

Mr. Solesky replied, no it wasn’t up on blocks.  I do not have any car at my house on blocks, but 

they said you cannot do any work or any kind on your own car or any car. 

 

Alderman Domaingue asked when the Building Inspector came out to see you did they explain 

to you the reasoning or the understanding of why that ordinance had come to be. 

 

Mr. Solesky replied it was just a complaint by a neighbor. 

 

Alderman Domaingue stated but he origin for the reason for the ordinance, did he explain it all 

to you what the reason was, why that ordinance was put in place. 

 

Mr. Solesky replied, no he didn’t.  He just sent me a letter with the ordinance, the ordinance is 

4.03.  I don’t know the exact subsection of this ordinance. 

 

Alderman Domaingue stated so he gave you no explanation whatsoever. 

 

Mr. Solesky reiterated, nope, just that a neighbor complained that I was working on my 

vehicles. 

 

Alderman Clancy asked, Sir, was this during the weekends or nights, what time was it. 

 

Mr. Solesky replied it was on the weekend, that’s the only time I have to work on my car, I 

work from five in the morning until seven at night. 

 

Alderman Clancy asked what time were you working on your car. 

 

Mr. Solesky replied during the daytime, during day light hours.  I don’t work at night, I don’t 

have the lighting. 

 

Alderman Clancy asked you weren’t doing any loud banging, were you. 

 

Mr. Solesky replied no. 

 

Alderman Shea asked is this a common practice.  Do you work on your car like every three or 

four weeks. 

 



10/7/97 Public Participation 
3 

Mr. Solesky replied I own a 1982 Oldsmobile with over 250,000 miles on it.  I work in Boston, I 

have to keep my vehicle running and the only way I can do it under my financial situation is to 

do it myself. 

 

Alderman Shea stated there are various concerns though that people do have regarding revving 

up the motor and working on it, I’m not sure that entails what you’re doing to disturb people or 

noise disturbances and so forth.  Why did the neighbor complain. 

 

Mr. Solesky replied, I have a neighbor that just does not like me.  If my grandchildren are 

playing in our front yard, he complains.  If I just start my car to go out to work or come home he 

says the fumes are coming into his apartment and he complains, he just likes to complain.  I 

have no problem with any other neighbor.  As a matter of fact, I am very friendly with ninety 

percent of the neighbors that I have, it’s just this one person.  But, it’s the City ordinance that is 

really bothering me.  The way it’s written is that nobody can do work on their own car and that, 

I don’t think is constitutionally correct. 

 

Alderman Robert stated in speaking with Mr. Solesky and his situation and also speaking with 

Leon Lafreniere of the Building Department, we discussed the particular section that’s in 

question.  Even Leon feels that the restriction is too broad and that it probably can use some fine 

tuning and that is essentially why I brought in the new business request today and that’s why 

Mr. Solesky is here.  It’s just out of a matter of need.  He’s not doing it commercially, he 

doesn’t have a sign out in front of his house saying that he does this stuff for money, but as he 

said he commutes to Boston, he has bills to pay, and if he can save a dollar on tuning up his own 

car, maybe doing a few of his own small repairs he can help is household budget out.  What my 

request is and what Mr. Solesky’s request is, is just for us to review it and if we can make 

allowances for that sort of thing, maybe we should. 

 

Mayor Wieczorek stated, I agree with that. 

 

Alderman Wihby moved to take all comments under advisement and further to receive and file 

any written documentation presented.  Alderman Pariseau duly seconded the motion.  The 

motion carried. 

 

There being no further business to come before the Special Meeting, on motion of Alderman 

Clancy, duly seconded by Alderman Pariseau, it was voted to adjourn. 

 

A True Record.  Attest. 

 

        City Clerk 


